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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ:  Let’s go ahead and start the informational hearing.  Thank you, members, for being here for the bill, as well.  This is an information hearing on the California State Lottery.  And I very much appreciate everyone’s participation today.  I can tell you that, number one, I’d like to thank the witnesses for coming and providing testimony for this morning’s hearing.  

And, as most of you know, at the California State Lottery Commission hearing, the Commission granted authority to the Acting Interim Director, Mr. Gutierrez, to enter into negotiations to participate in the Mega Millions multi-state lottery.  This, an attempt to increase flattened California Lottery sales.  And Mega Millions is played in 12 states, as most of you know, and is known for its very large jackpots.
This hearing provides our committee an opportunity to take a fresh look at the history of our Lottery to the present day, with an emphasis on what actions have been implemented previously by the Commission when we’ve had these sales that are flattened, and why in particular, Mega Millions makes the most sense.

It’s my goal, in this hearing, for each of us to have a clearer understanding of the history and functions of the California State Lottery.

This is a public hearing and if anyone wishes to speak on this matter, you can sign up with the sergeants at the back of the room.  And there will be an opportunity at the conclusion of today’s hearing to listen to your comments, as well.

Before that, let me ask if the Vice-Chair or other members in attendance, have any comments.

With that, let’s go ahead…

SENATOR NELL SOTO:  (Inaudible)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Soto.

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Senator Soto.  Any other members with comments?  Okay, with that, let’s go ahead and have Chon Gutierrez, the Interim Director of the California State Lottery.  And I have a bunch of questions, but if you want to make a presentation, Mr. Gutierrez, you can do that.

CHON GUTIERREZ:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members.  My name is Chon Gutierrez.  I am the Interim Director of the California Lottery.  It is a pleasure to be here with you today, to talk about the California Lottery.

With me, to my left is Jim Hasegawa, who is the Director of Marketing for the California Lottery.  And to my left is Buddy Roogow, the Director of the Maryland Lottery, and also, the president of Mega Millions.  Your consultant was kind enough to invite him to come to California and talk to you specifically about Mega Millions.

This morning we have a very, very thorough presentation.  I certainly hope it’s complete.  It looks like this.  It is some 76 slides.  We can go through them very, very quickly, or we can, kind of, skip through them.  We want to cover a little general history of the California Lottery.  We want to compare it to some of the other states; see how it ranks nationally.  We want to talk about the games that we offer here in California.  We want to talk about the thought process, the decision-making process, that we went through in making the decision about Mega Millions.  And, we want to look at some options in terms of how to improve sales in California.  We have no recommendations for you, but we do want to explore some industry standards.
So with the permission of the Chair, I can either start the presentation or skip through it, or whatever you’d like.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Depending on what the members would like to hear, I think if we can speed through the first three points and get to the discussion of the multi-state Lotto game and your thought process on that, I think that would be very helpful.  But I think, of course, the former is extremely important for your deliberation.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  And of course, if there are any questions as I’m going through this, I would appreciate you stopping me, asking the questions, and then I can respond to it.  I’m sorry, if that’s okay with the Chair?

Well, Mr. Chairman, members, as you know, the California Lottery was created by the vote of the people.  There was a lot of opposition to the concept of the California Lottery.  Here in the Legislature, there were several efforts to try to do it legislatively.  It did not occur.  There was an initiative that was put on the ballot in 1984, and it did pass by some 58 to 42%.  The beneficiary of the Lottery was education—much was made about the benefits that the Lottery would have on education.  Some people believe there was some other promise that was made.  There was oppositions to it because people were concerned about gambling being a problem, and that the Lottery would be a form of government sanctioned gambling.

SENATOR BOB MARGETT:  Who put most of the money into that initiative?
MR. GUTIERREZ:  There was a company called Scientific Games that was a wholly owned subsidiary of Bally.  They paid for the signature gathering; they paid for the advertising; they paid for the public relations.  They were the first ones to receive a contract under the Lottery because there were disclosure requirements that only allowed them to bid.  A wholly owned subsidiary of…
SENATOR MARGETT:  Who owns Scientific Games today?
MR. GUTIERREZ:  They’ve been sold several times.  They still exist as a company.  I’m not quite sure who the parent company is at this point.  The employees bought it out at one time.
BUDDY ROOGOW:  They are, if I can inject, Scientific Games now is its own company.  It’s SGI, is what they’re called—Scientific Games International.  And they provide online lottery services and instant ticket services all over the world.  And in fact, they provide the services for the Maryland Lottery.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m not sure if Senator Margett’s question was answered, and maybe I interpreted it incorrectly.  I think he asked, where are they in the mix?  Meaning, are they still providing the service for the Lottery?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  In California we currently have a company called OGT, that is printing our tickets for us.  The contract has expired.  We’ve extended it a couple of times.  
We have just released a request for proposal for a new vendor of the scratch-off tickets.  We expect to receive those bids in the next several weeks and months.  And we hope to have an apparent successful bidder.  
It is my understanding, Senator, that Scientific Games is interested in bidding on that contract, but they are not currently a contractor with the California Lottery.
SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)

MR. GUTIERREZ:  I’m sorry, Senator.

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Scientific Games is a very large company; a very successful company; and they are actively selling their product in states other than California.  When the California Lottery did a bid for the scratch-off ticket, some five-and-a-half/six years ago, OGT prevailed in that bid.  And Scientific Games at that point lost their contract.

The California Lottery has had a variety of different contracts over its 20-year history, including Scientific Games.  The original, I believe we had a contract with Web Craft in the early nineties, and then OGT, and now we’ll see who the new contractor is.

Senator, was that responsive to your question?

SENATOR MARGETT:  Yes.  In general I just wanted to know if they were still playing in California.
MR. GUTIERREZ:  Okay.  The effort to start the California Lottery was a challenging one.  No organization existed.  We had to create it very quickly.  We were sued by a school teacher who felt that by not having the Lottery selling, that they were losing the benefits of the sales.  
We did start, on October 3, 1985, we started with one product—a scratch-off ticket.  In those days we were selling 125- to 150 million tickets at one time.  We were paying about a penny a piece.  We continued with that practice for some time.  We started off with 5,000 retailers.  We started off with a scratch-off instant game because the capital investment was very minor.  The ability to start quickly was there.  The online Lotto type game we deferred as a second product that we would introduce.
The total number of retailers that we have today is less than we had in 1985.  Today we offer scratchers and Lotto type games.  And we have, on our distribution network….I should spend a minute and talk about that.  
If you look at other states you will find that retail outlets for lottery products tend to run around 1,200 population per retailer.  The more successful lotteries hover at that range or a little bit better.  That is to say, Massachusetts, for example, which is the number one lottery in the country, their retailer rate is about 900 to 1.  We in California, are about 2,000 to 1.  The reason the ratios are such, is the capital investment necessary to buy a terminal to set up the telephone lines and things of that nature are pretty substantial—probably over $5,000 per retailer.  It is a cost that the Lottery bears.  And so those decisions are made very carefully, very incrementally.  I personally believe we don’t have enough retailers to optimize the sale of our product in California.

If you look at the chart on the screen you will see that the online grew rapidly.  And that now, at one time we had Scratcher….all these instant ticket retailers only, and then when we added the online Lotto in 1986, we had a combination.  That gap closed until a point that we’re sitting today at 22,000 retailers and they are…

UNIDENTIFIED:  19,000.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  19,000.  Thank you.  And that they sell all of our products at one time.

One of the things I’m looking at right now in an effort to expand our retailer base is the possibility of going back to scratcher only retailers, where our capital investment is pretty low.

We offer….the products that you see up there are instant tickets.  We have some 35 of them on sale at one time.  We have a daily game that is selling about $15 million a year.  It’s a very low selling game.  Quite frankly, we’re looking to replace it with a game that is better received by our players.  I’m sorry, I said that Daily Three, didn’t I?  Daily Three is doing fine.  It’s the Daily Derby that’s not performing up to expectations.  Hot Spot, Fantasy Five, and of course, SuperLOTTO, which is our number one game—it is our flagship game, and our sales there are about a billion one.

Mr. Chairman, members, over the last 20 years the California Lottery has been doing relatively well on sales.  In the last four years we have broken records.  In every one of those years we have been hovering right around the 
$3 billion mark.  Last year we closed at $2,970,000,000.  This year we’re on pace to exceed that by as little bit.
If we can go to the next chart—you can see the sales history.  You can see that the first two years, which were the scratch-off only games, the sales were relatively strong.  Then Lotto kicked in.  You can see that Lotto really drove sales over time.  We hit the recession, or our sophomore year in 1992—sales begin to decline.  And it’s been an upward effort ever since.  You can see the last four years are relatively flat.  What drives those sales generally is how many jackpots that we have that are sizeable.  That is to say, $80 million or more.  It is a jackpot driven product—Lotto is.  Scratchers, on the other hand, is not.  It’s a very deliberate marketing effort, and we’ll talk more about that in a minute.

In terms of the initiative that the people voted on, 34% was supposed to go to education, 50% in prize, and a maximum of 16% for administrative costs.
This is what we did in 2004—it’s 52.6% that went back to the players.  The reason it’s more than 50% is a policy judgment was made by the Lottery to take some of the administrative savings and invest them back into the product itself, and that proved to be a successful strategy which increased sales.
Profits to education—they got their 34% as required by the law, and they got a little bit extra because the law also requires that unclaimed prize money go to education.
As far as the retailers themselves, they get a 6% commission for selling the product.  They get an incentive for selling the winning tickets and it averages out to 6.9%, or approximately 7% of the total sales goes to the retailers.


The game costs themselves.  That is to say, paying for the vendors to keep track of the tickets and print the tickets and run Lotto is about two cents.  And we’re spending about 3.6 cents for staff, operations, Lottery, advertising, public relations, the efforts to market our product.


The next slide—as I mentioned earlier, 16% is the maximum.  We’re hovering at 12.5%, well below the requirements of the law.


Annual contributions to education—it’s a direct relationship to sales.  The higher the sales, the more money goes to education.  The lower the sales, the less money goes to education. 


You can see in 1992, the year that the Lottery had its worst year, you can also see it was the worst year in terms of benefits to education—just barely $500 million, or half of what they had received two years prior, leading to criticism (rightfully so) that they rely on an amount of money and then it isn’t there.  
You can see that there is an element of stability in the last four years that’s been achieved through a lot of hard work over the last 10 years to get us to that level.


Where does the money go?  Well, 79% of it goes to K-12, Mr. Chairman, 13% goes to community colleges.  It’s based on ADA, and it reflects the major segments in our system, including the 2% that goes for, is that books, Jim?


UNIDENTIFIED:  (Inaudible)


MR. GUTIERREZ:  The Department of Education?  I don’t know what that 2% is, Mr. Chairman.  Does anybody in the audience know?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It says administration.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yeah, but administration of what?  That’s money that’s going to the sectors.  I will find out what that 2% is.  My guess is, that’s really the Youth Authority, and I’m guessing they mislabeled it on the charts.  That would be mental hospitals and places of that sort that have ADA, is what I would guess.


Much has been said about our playership.  We do try to keep track of who plays our product and how often they play it.  And Mr. Chairman, the people that play the California Lottery reflect the population of California—from an ethnic perspective, from an economic perspective, from a demographic perspective.


MR. HASEGAWA:  A large difference actually tends to be on gender.  Men are more likely to play the Lottery.  And the other large difference tends to be with age.  We tend to have more players 35 and older than the general population.  But other than that, it typically reflects the makeup of California adults in general.  And we have all the documentation to show you in the handout.

And in the past year, about almost 14 million Californians buy a ticket at least once during the year, during 2004.  And so we end up doing our calculations based on sales, and that would represent about less than $5 per week, per player.  So as you can see, it’s not on average a lot of people spending a lot.  It’s a lot of people spending a modest amount of money.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, I mentioned the fact that we had an element of stability in the last four years.  In 1988, ’89, ’90, and ’91 the California Lottery was the number one lottery in the country.  Today, we’re number five.  And we’re five behind who, Jim?  We’re five behind New York, Massachusetts, Texas, and Florida.  We are, however, the largest state in the country by a great deal.  And if we look at our per capita sales, that would be us in purple down there on the lower right hand side.  We are right there ahead of Indiana, and Washington, and Minnesota.  Our per capita sales are $84.  And Buddy will tell you that Massachusetts is an anomaly and we ought not to compare ourselves against Massachusetts.  Well I think it’s appropriate to compare ourselves to Massachusetts.  And they’re $684 per capita, I think.  And so we have a lot of room to improve our performance, if the goal is, to have us be amongst the leaders and have per capita that is at least consistent with the rest of the country.


One of the things that we asked ourselves, and a lot of people ask is, why are we not doing as well as some of the other lotteries in the country, particularly if you look at New York and Massachusetts?  And why aren’t we comparing with them?  And so we made a list of what we believe are best practices that are not available to the California Lottery but are being used by the other lotteries to achieve the sales levels that they are achieving.

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)


MR. GUTIERREZ:  They’re legislative matters, Senator and we have not had enough votes to change the law.  And the first one is of course, prize payout.  We pay 50% in prizes.  There is ample evidence to suggest that the higher you go, the closer you get to 75% you start to maximize the lottery sales.  The higher the prizes the more people purchase the product.  There are some folks who would argue that we’re encouraging gambling when we do that, there are others that who would argue that we’re optimizing the benefit to education, but there’s not been enough votes to change that.

MR. ROOGOW:  Could I say one thing about that?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Please.


MR. ROOGOW:  The prize payout is a very critical factor.  In Maryland it averages probably about 57%.  I think you’re at about 52 last year, and that was using administrative dollars.  
What we all need to realize is that there are incredible competitive forces out there today.  We know what’s available on our state’s borders, on your state’s borders.  In fact, within this states that have much higher payouts.  We’re talking about payouts of over 90%.  So many lotteries have gone to higher payouts because players are savvy and they do know when a game is worth playing and when it’s not.  So I just interject that.


SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman, if you don’t mind.  There should be just so many gambling dollars out there, gaming dollars out there in terms of California specific.  I mean, you have horseracing, you have certainly the gaming at the Indian reservations ________.  Don’t you think that enters into buying a lottery ticket?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  I think it does, Senator.  I think most of us buy lottery products because of the money that we’ve either budgeted for that purpose or because of the state of mind that we’re in.  
I know that prior to me returning to the California Lottery, my wife would buy lottery tickets based upon, “Oh, it’s $25 million.  Let’s buy a lottery ticket.”  Five dollars worth, $10 here.  It’s a spontaneous kind of entertainment value and I think it fluctuates.  
I think it’s very difficult to say, “Well, the amount of money that’s budgeted for Lottery on a statewide basis is $3 billion,” I don’t think we can put a dollar figure on it.  But I do, I think that people buy the lottery product responsibly, and they respond to the product itself.  If the product offers them more chances to win, a $5 prize, a $50 prize, a $100 prize, I think they buy the product more frequently.


SENATOR COX:  In other words, you don’t think there’s much competition from horseracing, for instance, even though they have a chance to win on a horserace _______ something like that, as opposed to a million, 
$2 million to one winning of the in your Big Game?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, this is a subject that we discussed with some frequency.  And that is, to what extent does the products that the gambling dollar chase, are the same products that the Lottery offers?  Some people believe they’re different demographics.  That people who play horses, people who play cards, people who play those kinds of “games,” are a different demographic than the people who scratch off the latex on a ticket, or the people that buy a Lotto ticket.  I can appreciate that an argument can be made that, “No, they’re really the same.  Gambling is gambling.”  But I think it takes a different demographics.


SENATOR SOTO:  I think you’re right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator McClintock.


SENATOR TOM MCCLINTOCK:  What percentage increase would maximize your sales?  You’ve got a 52.6%…


MR. GUTIERREZ:   That’s a darn good question, Senator.  Let me tell you, I’ve discussed it…


SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  I think you’re arguing that the payoff should be increased, so my question is…
MR. GUTIERREZ:  How much?

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  By increasing the payoff, you’re going to increase your gross sales.  So the question is…

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Where?

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  What is the percentage payoff that maximizes your sales?
MR. GUTIERREZ:  That’s an excellent question.  We, again, have kicked it around internally.  Let me tell you the advice I’ve gotten from staff.  They tell me that from a legislative strategy perspective, we should ask for 60%.  That’s a legislative strategy.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  So basically an 8% increase in your payoff.  What does that do to maximize sales?  What is your projection on that?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  In the past we have provided estimates to the Legislature on such a bill, and we’re looking at about a billion-five over three years, and it’s a slow process of building…

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  A billion-five total, or a billion-five…

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Additional revenues.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  On top of what you….you’re grossing what, three now?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes.  So it would be a 4.5 for that change alone.  And education would probably get somewhere in the vicinity of 25%.  Not the 34% because we’re putting more into the product.  So we’re at about 300 million there.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  So you would expect an increase for education of about 300 million?
MR. GUTIERREZ:  We would.  Is that right, Jim?  These are round numbers.  Jim will tell you, a lot of our math is regression towards the mean because sometimes we get hit and sometimes we don’t.  And on average, I’m talking average numbers.  Let me add, Senator, though, because I think that is a darn good question, I’ve asked my colleagues that very question.  And, well, Buddy.

MR. ROOGOW:  I’ll be happy to speak.  First, I want to be candid with you.  The states that have eliminated the requirement of a specific percentage, and given the Lottery a little bit more flexibility, have seen the sales grow more quickly.  Now, when I say that, if you look at lottery games traditionally, in states around the country, Massachusetts being the prime example, scratch-offs, as you call them, scratchers, have the highest payout by far.  The numbers games actually have remained in the 50 to low 50s range.  The scratch-offs and keno style games have higher payouts.  And most lotteries are averaging probably, the more successful ones, in the neighborhood of 57 to 60%.

SENATOR SOTO:  Can I ask something?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Soto.

SENATOR SOTO:  I’m going back to the comparisons.  And since the influx and excitement over the casinos….and this might have been asked already and answered, by I don’t remember hearing it….what’s the difference now that the casinos are in full bloom and they’re making a lot of money, and if you pass by the Morago, let’s say, you can’t find a parking space there.  And it seems like one or two miles of the parking lot is full of people.  How does that affect the Lottery sales, and how has it affected it since then?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  That’s a good question too.  We’ve again, taken a look at our lottery sales.  Our lottery sales in the last four years are up.  They’re up primarily because the scratcher product, we’ve been putting more administrative money into the prize fund and the opportunity to win has increased in the scratcher product—the instant product.  In that same four-year period of time you’ve seen the explosion of casinos.  
And you’re absolutely right, when I go there I have to walk a mile and a half to get to the front door.  They’re very popular.  I don’t think it’s the same demographics, Senator.  I think people go to the casinos for the unitarian entertainment value of going there.  They go there because they offer good food, nice environment, an opportunity to entertain yourself by playing the games that they offer.  The Lottery player, I think is a different demographic.  I think those same players that attend the casinos purchase our product, but I think on Saturdays or Fridays or whatever the day is, they go to the casinos for that purpose.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator McClintock and then Senator Cox.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  Well again, just working the numbers—you’re saying right now that education gets about 35% of the $3 billion that you gross.  Increase the payoff, thereby decreasing the percentage going to education, education will get about 25% of $4.5 billion.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  No.  It will be 25% of the increment.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  Oh, just to the increment?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yeah.  I was just doing fast math in my head.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  Okay.  Again, the way it works out, 25% of $4.5 billion is not a whole lot more than 35% of $3-.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes.  

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  The concern that I have is this—it’s my understanding that the experience of lotteries throughout the country, throughout the world, is that when they’re introduced people really interested in them, they do quite well.  The problem with it is what Joan Rivers once pointed out, she said, “The great thing about the state lottery is, you have the same chance of winning whether you buy at ticket or not.”  And if you look at it just statistically at the mean, for every dollar you invest in the Lottery, you get back 52.6 cents, not a really smart investment.  People start to figure that out.  Sales decline.  So the Lottery is constantly under pressure to find new ways, new flashy ways, to interest people in making a really bad investment and one of those factors is offering bigger and bigger payouts.  If you’re going to reduce the amount that’s going to education to increase the amount that’s going for the payoff, the problem lies in this—you will get a spurt of revenue, you’ll get your $1.5 billon, and then as people again figure out this is not a really smart thing to do with their money, those start to decline and education ends up with less than it’s getting now.  That would be my concern.  I mean, the purpose of the Lottery is not to maximize ticket sales.  The purpose of the Lottery is to maximize support for education, otherwise we shouldn’t be in the business in the first place.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And on that let me just ask to follow up on Senator McClintock’s question of the odds.  I mean, as some people start to realize their odds aren’t as good, what are the odds now in terms of playing the Big Game as compared as when we get into the new game that’s been promoted?  Do the odds get….I mean, right now it’s a one and how much chance?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Playing SuperLOTTO Plus in California, the odds are about one in 34.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One in 34?

MR. HASEGAWA:  To win any prize.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Just a million.  There’s 40…

MR. HASEGAWA:  The top prize is one in 41 million. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One in ?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Forty-one million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And then when you get into the Mega, what’s the odds then?

MR. HASEGAWA:  135 million to one, is the current odds.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you’ll go to one to 135 million odds.  And then Senator McClintock’s question on the odds is now for people kind of saying “my odds aren’t good even then,” are what?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Forty-one million to one currently on to win the jackpot in SuperLOTTO Plus.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  One in 45 million and 1 in what was it?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Currently 135.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  135 million, I’m not sure that difference impresses people too much.  Either way, you’ve got about the same chance of winning whether you buy the ticket or not.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Cox and then Senator Denham.  Go ahead.

SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman, thank you.  Let me just ask, if I may, I want to understand what you’re talking about, you’d like to in fact raise the payout.  The Lottery today starts at roughly $4 million.  Does that mean you’d be starting the Lottery at $5 million or what does that mean?
MR. HASEGAWA:  Typically the prize payout isn’t used on the Lotto games that probably more of you are familiar with that are the big jackpots.  They’re usually on the scratch-off game, the Scratchers games.  And that’s because most of the prizes are increased in prizes like from $10 to $500 or $1,000.  That’s where the added money goes.

SENATOR COX:  So if you increase the payout it doesn’t necessarily mean that you’re going to start the Lottery at greater than $4 million.  The SuperLOTTO is greater than $4 million, you go to $7 million?
MR. HASEGAWA:  It starts at $7million.  SuperLOTTO Plus wouldn’t be the beneficiary of the increase, yes.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  It’s $7million, and then if it is not a hit, it goes to about $10-.

SENATOR COX:  Then let me ask you this question.  When, in the state of California did the Lottery sales really explode?  What really gets the blood boiling of the citizens of the state of California?  How big does the pot have to get before you really get excited about it?
MR. HASEGAWA:  That’s a very good question because we actually have it in our presentation, but I’ll answer it here, Senator.  That amount has changed over time.  What used to be a jackpot of $20-, $30-, $40 million in the eighties that would get the retailers, the press, the public excited, has now turned to probably a jackpot of about $80 million before we see a significant increase in revenue.

SENATOR COX:  Does that mean then that the $7 million jackpot is a loser as far as the Lottery is concerned?  

MR. HASEGAWA:  No, we still…

SENATOR COX:  You break even paying out $7 million?

MR. HASEGAWA:  If it’s hit at $7 million often it will not cover it, correct.

SENATOR COX:  So if you just kept hitting $7 million, $7 million, it wouldn’t cover the cost of the Lottery, is that correct?

MR. HASEGAWA:  It wouldn’t cover the cost within the prize fund.  But typically, based on the number of tickets purchased for that $7 million, the probability of having a winner isn’t as large as when we have an $80 million jackpot, because we have significantly more sales.

SENATOR COX:  And when we have the large….one more question, Mr. Chairman….when we see the large jackpots in the state of California, do we see an increase number of sales along our borders?  The Nevada border?  The Oregon border?  The Arizona border?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Yes, we do.  Our largest retailer happens to border Nevada, and their sales go up dramatically when there is an extremely large jackpot.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Our two largest retailers, one is on the southern California side of the border, and the other one is up here in Truckee.  And those two retailers do about $15 million.  It is a dramatic amount of traffic that comes across the border to buy our product.

SENATOR COX:  It sounds like the franchise to have, sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Senator Denham.

SENATOR JEFF DENHAM:  How are the education dollars distributed?  

MR. GUTIERREZ:  On a per capita basis by the state controller.

SENATOR DENHAM:  And the formula still works out to be 80 for K-12?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Seventy-nine.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Seventy-nine for K-12?  Thirteen, community college; five CSU; two UC?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  (nod of head) Yes.

SENATOR DENHAM:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I guess you can proceed.  Let’s keep moving on so we can get to the Mega Millions.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Okay.  And we want to go through the….another best practice issue that we have is the top prize, Mr. Chairman.  There was a court case that the California Lottery lost that basically precluded us from guaranteeing the top prize—a fixed prize that is to say.  A lot of Lottery players like to know what they’re playing for.  They want to know that in a keno game, that if they win that they’re going to get paid what…

MR. HASEGAWA:  Like $500, $50, a specific amount rather than pari-mutuel.
MR. GUTIERREZ:  And as you know, there are some keno draws where you get a lot of people that participate.  There are other keno draws where you have less people.  And, a court found that we had to make all of those draws pari-mutuel.  That is to say, that they had to stand with….we had to cover the prize structure based on each individual draw.  And the only way that we could do that is by simply not telling people what top prize they would be playing for, and we think that affects our ability to effectively market a product.  

Buddy, do you have any…

MR. ROOGOW:  Yeah.  Certainly the major games, Mega Millions, Powerball, and the major lotteries around the country, are moving in the direction of fixed prizes, non-pari-mutuel play at those levels.  Of course, the top level is always pari-mutuel, because if you have more than one winner, they share the top prize.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  The other best practice, Mr. Chairman, is when the initiative was written that was put before the voters, an effort to make it acceptable to the voters and maybe to minimize some political opposition, they put in a restriction that said we could not use any casino type games.  Some of these are very popular games.  For example, right now various forms of poker are very popular.  To the extent that we could use those themes in our instant scratch off product, I think we can increase our sales.  It is a best practice that is not available to California.  I don’t think it’s a major contributor to sales, but it is a best practice that is not available.
The multi-state lottery game is clearly the way that we can increase our sales.  And so let’s go to the next chart.

Overview…

SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman, that will be in addition to all of the other games you’re offering?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, members.

Do you want to do this one, Jim?

MR. HASEGAWA:  We just want to briefly talk a little bit about our games in general.  As evidenced by the members here, I mean, in California people think of the Lottery really as the Lotto type games, with the big jackpots.  Because as you can see from this chart, that’s the vast majority of Californians.  About half of them play SuperLOTTO Plus in a given year compared to the instant games of only 30%.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me interrupt you for a minute before we go onto this topic.  Just a follow up on Mr. Gutierrez’s question.  You were describing the language in Prop. 37, that we couldn’t use certain types of games.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  That’s correct.  Certain themes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Do you have flexibility on the technology, though?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  There is a bill that was introduced by Senator Leslie, I believe he was a senator at the time, that basically says technology that was not widely used prior to 1985 cannot be used in the future for the sale of Lottery tickets unless specifically approved by the Legislature.  
There are different attorneys that are looking at it and trying to determine exactly what the limitations are.  But yeah, we think technology is an issue.  And quite frankly, Mr. Chairman, appreciate any thoughts on that subject from you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  An in terms of the instant game video terminals, obviously there’s discussion about, early in this year, with tribes that had some of these instant game video type terminals, now is the Lottery then considered that if it, indeed, falls in that purview, if you will, of your particular technology?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Right.  Clearly as we look at new games we’re very mindful of the relationship of the Indian casinos and the legal relationship between the state of California and them in terms of what products can be used on those casinos and we limit ourselves to as not to create a problem for the relationship with the casinos.  So the answer is, no, we wouldn’t use equipment that would not otherwise be available to the Indians.  I’m sorry, that was the question?
SENATOR FLOREZ:  I mean, are you thinking about the profits to Indian casinos or are you thinking about how do we make the Lottery work?  I mean, it sounds as if you’re saying we wouldn’t want to impede upon…

MR. GUTIERREZ:  That relationship.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I’m asking if it was shown that in certain establishments that the same type of technology would actually bring in larger dollars that fit within our particular charge…
MR. GUTIERREZ:  Let me tell you my thought on the process.  And of course, I would take it to the governor’s office for guidance.  

I’m with Senator McClintock.  My view is, that we exist for the sole purpose of producing benefit to education.  That’s the way the people voted on it.  And if a particular technology does that, then it’s a policy decision that needs to be made by the Legislature and the governor as to whether or not we want to use that technology.  But if it shows that it has a benefit to education, I’ll bring it to you for your consideration.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay. 

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)

MR. HASEGAWA:  Yes.  Almost14 million people play a lottery game at least once in a given year, and most of those people play SuperLOTTO Plus.  About 12 ¾ million looking at the chart.  Compared to the instant games, about 7 ½ million people might play it at least once in a given year.
In terms of SuperLOTTO Plus, because we’re going to talk Mega Millions, SuperLOTTO Plus, you pick five numbers between one and 47, one mega number between one and 27 and describe the odds as about one in 41 million to hit the jackpot.  We draw Wednesday and Saturdays.  And our largest jackpot in our history is $193 million.

In general, what you’ll see is that bigger jackpots create the bigger sales.  You get more people playing then.  And we actually will show a case where we changed our game in Lotto in 2000 and we increase sales about 19% by having more frequent large jackpots.

This curve shows back in June of 2001, once the jackpot got to about $60-, $70-, $80 million range, that’s when sales really took off and it yielded $141 million jackpot.  As you can see, the curve goes up quite steeply at the end.  And that’s because that’s when a lot more people play.  

From this chart you can see that when jackpots get over $100 million, in those three or four days when the jackpot’s that size, we’re getting about a third of Californians purchasing a ticket at one of our 19,000 locations.  And that compares to a jackpot, say, of $40 million when we might only have 10, 11, 12, 13% of adults in California participating.

With SuperLOTTO Plus we did see some sales decline in the mid 1990s, as you can see from that chart, and then we instituted a change to the game.  The game design ended up being more similar to the Powerball and Mega Millions games out there, where people picked five numbers between one and 47 and on mega number between one and 27.  We increase the number of ways you can win from just four ways to nine different ways that people could win some type of prize.  And we had more frequent jackpots and a larger second prize, and sales increased dramatically.

Comparing to the last three years of SuperLOTTO Plus to the three years prior to its introduction, sales over those same three years are up about 19%.  The reason for that is the fact that we have increased the number of occurrences where there’s a big jackpot.  And when big jackpots occur, that’s when more and more Californians participate, and that’s for the reason for the increase in sales.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Let me say a word or two about the scratcher product, Mr. Chairman.  Let’s go to the next chart, Jim.

This is a sales history of the scratcher product in California.  I’m going to focus only on this chart and then move onto the next subject, because we’re taking more time perhaps than is appropriate.

You can see the earthquake like pattern on the left hand side.  That reflects the single product introduction.  The very initial popular demand.  People were rushing out to see what the new ticket was like.  They tried it.  They stopped playing it.  It fell off.  It went down.  We introduced a new game.  We were doing one game at a time, and it was very labor intensive.

You can see that the pattern starts to even out as it hits bottom and it starts to go up a little bit.  We introduced more than one ticket at a time.  We went to five tickets.  We went to ten tickets.  You can see a dramatic increase in 1997 that says higher payouts started.  That’s when we started to shift money from administrative savings into the prize fund.  And you can see that from that point on, there’s been a pretty steady growth over time.  So that’s probably enough said for that, although…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  While you’re going to the next subject, let’s go an open the roll, if we could, for those members that have other commitments.  On number one, the rules.  So could you call the absent members on the committee rules?
BRENDA HEISER:  On the committee rules, Denham?

SENATOR DENHAM:  Aye.

MS. HEISER:  Denham, aye.  Battin?  Chesbro?  Dunn?  Murray?  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then on AB 42, Nunez.

MS. HEISER:  Absent members, Denham?

SENATOR DENHAM:  Aye.

MS. HEISER:  Denham, aye.  Battin?  Chesbro?  Dunn?  Murray?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And, Senator McClintock, I will provide the Chairman, and he can provide it to all the members, with a detailed explanation of how to calculate the return to education if there was a 60% change of the price structure, and then you can consider that.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  Well again, the one thing that I think you need to consider, is a very dynamic nature of the Lottery sales.  Everyone of the graphs that you’ve shown indicates that when a game is first introduced…

MR. GUTIERREZ:  No question about it.

SENATOR MCCLINTOCK:  Higher participation, and every time sales fall off over time. People can figure out, not a really good way to make money.  My concern is, you adjust those percentages you will see a temporary increase in sales and a temporary increase in education revenue.  As people wise up and sales fall off, you end up producing less money for education than you would have if you left the rate alone.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  I appreciate your point completely. 

This last chart and then we’ll move onto Mega Millions.  What I asked staff to do is to plot in green the sales of the scratcher product over time.  And as you can see, is the staff has been particularly successful since ’02, in terms of reversing the trend that Senator McClintock spoke to.  So we’ve seen an increase every year for the last three years.  

As you look at the two orange figures, you’re looking at the two orange, and I’m not quite sure what that other color is, the last four, you’ll see what the sales would be based upon their projection of a 60% payout.  So you would see four consecutive years of growth.  And of course, Senator McClintock’s point is that you get way out there to the far right, at some point it’s going to start to come down.  For the next four years, we don’t anticipate that occurring.

So, Jim, do you want to go into, or Buddy.  Let’s ask Buddy to do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re going to Mega Millions now, right?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Before you start, let me set up a parameter here so we can kind of move through this.  And I know members are busy today.  I don’t want to spend a lot of time on it.  But, Mega Millions, first and foremost, is it an organization that you’re representing?  You’re the president of what?

MR. ROOGOW:  Well, there’s eleven Lotteries—California would be the twelfth.  And we informally elect officers who are directors of the various lotteries.  So this year I serve as president of the Mega Millions group and represent them in public forums.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The Mega Millions group then is an informal group.
MR. ROOGOW:  Yes, it is.  It is not a corporation.  We have no staff other than the Lottery staff that works for each of us.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So when California does a deal with your group, how does that work?

MR. ROOGOW:  Well there’s rules.  And your attorney general….the counsel for the Lottery would, of course, be involved, but there are rules by which each member state operates.  And there are audit rules.  There are security and integrity rules.  There are drawing rules.  There are sales rules.  And they simply agree to abide by those rules.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  They agree to abide by the rules of your group.

MR. ROOGOW:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so when our Lottery director and others decide, or go to the Commission to decide to enter into your group, we’re, in essence, dealing with a private party, an informal group?  

MR. ROOGOW:  You’re dealing with a consortium of members that have not been incorporated.  I hesitate to say it’s a private party.  It is a group of Lotteries that have set standards and have forms which are signed off by counsel for each Lottery, and the directors of each Lottery, that they will abide by the agreements within that set of rules.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the reason I ask that, and the reason, actually, that I wanted to have the hearing members, is that, you know, I kind of read about this in the newspaper.  And I’m kind of wondering when you see a big change like that, you see our Lottery folks and going and entering into a group agreement, if you will, with your group, number one, I think the Legislature would like to be notified first and foremost.  And number two, I think we always want to provide oversight on terms of whether or not this is a good deal, in essence.  And so the reason for this, a good portion of this hearing, is to find out, number one, if it is a good deal, and I think the case is going to be made yes or no.  But as we….you know, I looked at the statute and it says, our statute says, “The Director may not contract with any private party for the operation and administration of the California State Lottery created by this chapter.”  However, it does not preclude procurements which integrate things like game design, supply, advertising and public relations.  So I guess the question I would have is, whether or not we overstepped our bounds and didn’t come to the Legislature and entered into an agreement with you folks, or indeed, are you just simply public relations, advertising, supply, and game designs?  I mean, it has to be a little more than that.  I’m kind of wondering how that works.

MELISSA MEITH:  Mr. Chairman, I’m Melissa Meith.  I’m the general counsel for the Lottery.  Members, the agreement is a Joint Powers Agreement which I’m sure you’re all familiar with, where agencies that share basically a common jurisdiction and purpose can agree to exercise their powers within their jurisdiction in accordance with certain rules, and to basically do the same function over those boundaries.  So it’s a Joint Powers Agreement.

The provision you’re looking at…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Isn’t that Joint Powers Agreement normally three or so parties that agree to something?

MS. MEITH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But this statute says we’re not supposed to agree with parties on things other than game design, supply, advertising, public relations.

MS. MEITH:  I believe what you’re referring to is the procurement statute for the Lottery, talking about the acquisition of products and services for running the Lottery.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m referring to how you operate.  What you’re allowed to enter in to.  And I’m kind of wondering, you use the word “joint powers” some sort of, you know, way to say that necessarily we don’t have to necessarily go to the Legislature to seek this?

MS. MEITH:  Well, the Joint Powers Agreement is a separate set of statutes that where the Legislature has authorized organizations to basically work together to accomplish some common goal that they’re all charged with.  So the Joint Powers Agreement provisions don’t require that the Legislature necessarily be involved.  And in this instance….

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just my thought, it seems to me you’re sidestepping.  It seems to me you’re finding the Joint Powers Agreement in order to not come to the Legislature and to seek, in essence, our opinion on something as important as joining a multi-state entity, which either is pro or con, but at the minimum allowing us some input into this.  Would you not say….do you think we should be involved in this decision?  Let me just start there.
MS. MEITH:  Well, as the general counsel, I’ll let the people that talk about marketing and running the Lottery talk about the good reasons for this.  But I just want to make the point that there is a legal mechanism for doing this, and that’s the Joint Powers Agreement.
SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman, let me just ask the question more directly.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, I’m sorry, Senator.

SENATOR COX:  What Mr. Chairman has asked you is whether or not you have the authority to do the deal?  That’s what he has asked.  Forget about whether it’s called a joint powers or it’s called something else.  The question that the Senator is asking is, do you have the ability to do the deal?  Do you have the authority?  Did you have to come to the Legislature in order to have the authority to get involved with a joint powers to do a Mega Powerball?

SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Thank you.  Very well stated.  Much better than I did.

MS. MEITH:  We did not have to come to the Legislature to enter the deal because it’s simply another lottery game.  Tickets sell for a dollar.  The odds are the same.  The prize allocations are the same.  The profits stay in California.  This is just another lottery game.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s just another lottery game?

MS. MEITH:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But the Mega Millions does things that the lottery was ot allowed to do, like, they don’t have to do pari-mutuel, right?

MS. MEITH:  All of the prizes in California are pari-mutuel.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  But all of the prizes of Mega Millions aren’t pari-mutuel.

MS. MEITH:  All of the prizes that will be awarded for California tickets will be pari-mutuel.  So, Mega Millions has certain sort of high level standards, operating procedures, but California will operate this game as a California game.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And Mega Millions doesn’t have to change anything in the way it operates in order to accommodate us?

MS. MEITH:  No.  The rules of the agreement, the rules, all of that is laid out.  All of the states sign off, but there’s no change in the way each of those states….and Mega Millions is not itself a thing either.  It’s twelve states operating a game jointly.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  It’s not a thing, but it’s something we entered into with a thing.

MS. MEITH:  We enter a Joint Powers Agreement.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  JPA agreement like this.  It’s not really an entity, but we entered into something with….

MS. MEITH:  A Joint Powers Agreement with these other states.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A thing under a Joint Powers Agreement statute.  Are we signing something? 

MS. MEITH:  You signed a Joint Powers Agreement.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re signing with a Joint Powers Authority, agreement, right?

MS. MEITH:  Mmm hmm.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I asked earlier whether or not this is a formal group, and it’s kind of an informal group?

MS. MEITH:  Some Joint Powers Agreements….

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Something goes wrong, what happens?  If something goes wrong, we’re supposed to get video terminals….you know the way the game is supposed to be run here, something doesn’t quite work out, what’s our recourse in this Joint Powers Agreement?


MS. MEITH:  Well, you can step out of the agreement.  I can’t imagine….I guess I’m having a hard time understanding what you mean by “something goes wrong.”


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, do you want to go through a list?


MS. MEITH:  You mean a draw goes that a prize claimant doesn’t come forward?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We have an independent audit function here to makes sure things are working right for Californians, is that going to apply to Mega Millions?


MS. MEITH:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We have independent audit lottery security, is that going to apply to Mega Millions?


MS. MEITH:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  All that’s going to….is that true?


MR. ROOGOW:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  


MR. ROOGOW:  We’ve agreed to abide actually, or accommodate whatever California’s requirements are to ensure your successful entry.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So you’re going to change your entire structure to accommodate California?  Or, are we a side sub of…


MR. ROOGOW:  Well, we really don’t have to change the entire structure.  One of the major things that we agreed to, is that California can continue to operate Mega Millions as a pari-mutuel game.  We’ve agreed to that.  The other states will operate it in the form that it’s been operating in the past.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  ________ for that we should go through Mega Millions.  But I guess I’m just trying to understand the legal basis for which most of us read about this in the newspaper, and then we read a statute that says “The Director may not contract with private parties for operation and administration other than things for game design, supply, advertising, and public relations.”  And you’re saying that you’re able to do that because of the Joint Powers Agreement?


MS. MEITH:  Right.  This is not a contract with a private party.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But if something goes wrong, we have a recourse?


MS. MIETH:  Yes.  Just as there’s….and I would point out, too, that virtually all states have high levels of audit standards requiring an independent audit.  For example, let me give you one California quirk.  In California, draws of the actual ticket draws, the actual winning number draws, are videotaped.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So one, our independent audit of Lottery security shall be conducted biannually.  We’re still going to do that?


MS. MEITH:  Yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re going to do that for Mega Millions?


MS. MEITH:  We do that for all of our games.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For five states?


MS. MEITH:  No.  We will do it for Mega Millions within California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So who all ultimately runs Mega Millions?  California?


MS. MEITH:  California will run Mega Millions in California.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And there is not going to be anymore administrative costs to do that?


MS. MEITH:  I think there’s a little bit of game operating cost as there is in any instance, but no, not in particular.  I think we have to have a California employee observe the draw, so we’ll need to set up some video equipment to make sure that happens and that sort of thing.


MR. ROOGOW:  If I could add one thing.  The primary cost that Mega Millions has is for the drawing itself.  The drawing is for all the states, and that is our primary cost. We don’t have staff.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  I still don’t understand it very well.


MS. MEITH:  I’ll be glad to provide you copies of the Joint Powers Agreement or the rules or some of the background.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that would be a Joint Powers Agreement that’s already signed, right?


MS. MEITH:  It is actually….each of the states has to adopt it.  Each state has a different process, so it has not been signed.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It has not been signed.


MS. MEITH:  It has not been signed.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we’re not in this yet?


MS. MEITH:  Right.  But we have terms, so I can share with you a final document that is circulating to each of the states.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.


SENATOR SOTO:  (Inaudible)


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m sorry, members, to digress, but I wanted to kind of get the basis of, number one, how we entered into this.


Buddy, why don’t you tell us, number one, let’s start with the multi-state lottery game.  What is it?  How is it played?  How the Mega Millions game is created, and then I’ll have some questions.


MR. ROOGOW:  Sure.  You can see from the slide that the multi-state game started in the mid ’80s.  They started because small states could not generate significant Lotto jackpots on its own, and therefore, they were not obtaining the interest of their players.  So, they banded together and tried to create larger jackpots.  And that continued to grow until, in fact, in the early ’90s when Powerball started, in ’91.  In ’92 when they had large number of states of who represent many of the Midwestern states and the mountain states that weren’t able to generate those large jackpots.  
What was happening in those states and continued to happen in the ’90s and into the early 2000s is, the Lotto game itself, the in-state Lotto games for almost all the states in the country, saw a decline because the jackpots no longer were interesting and exciting to players as well as to media.  And we could argue why isn’t a million or two or three exciting, but that’s what happened.  So by ’96 states combined to form Mega Millions, and you can see that what began as the Big Game in August ’96 included, and still includes, Georgia, Illinois, Massachusetts, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, and then, Virginia.  And the jack pot odds originally were one in 53 million.  You can see the information on how the draw worked.  And we did one draw per week.  

Now, we then moved to two drawings a week and we moved those drawings to Tuesday and Friday, which is a very important factor for California.  Because California has, and wants to maintain, a very successful Lotto game which is drawn on Wednesday and Saturday.  And like the Mega Millions dates, some of us have very strong Lotto games that continue to still do pretty well.  They’re drawn on Wednesday and Saturday.  So a Tuesday and Friday drawing allowed essentially four drawing days to have excitement generated around the Lottery in general.  So that happened.


And then in 2002, some of the larger states in our group joined—New York and Ohio joined.  And we developed some huge jackpots.  We have the largest jackpot that ever was developed, which was $363 million, and then one a little smaller than that, $331 million.  But the odds were increased.  As you can see the matrix change of 5 of 52 to one in 52, which is what we currently use; one in 135 million.


Now, I want to say this because it’s very important for you to understand, Mega Millions, I will publicly say, don’t bet the farm on this game.  I mean, 135 million to one?  I mean literally, whose got a chance to win?  People listen to that.  The average transaction is somewhere in the neighborhood of $3 during a large jackpot period.  That means, the average person comes in and spends $3.  What they do is, they pool their resources; they’re in office groups; they’re in groups of shoppers, or employees, or simply families and friends, and they get together and they watch the drawing and enjoy the fantasy, I suppose, of watching that drawing.  

Now, the other prizes are pretty critical too, because the prizes continue to descend from the jackpot down to several dollars with $175,000 prize as the second tier, which gets hit fairly frequently and fairly often and, therefore, does generate additional excitement.


You can see what’s happened here in our historical trends in jackpots and sales in jackpots.  When we were the Big Game with only seven states, you can see the jackpot, the average sales per draw which was about a little under 10 million.  And when we went to ten states, then eleven states with Texas, we got to over 21 million.  And then the average advertised jackpot has risen to $55 million or so now from the initial $26-$27 million.  So we’ve seen an increase in jackpot sales and the size of the jackpots.


This is what I think is very important to you.  What happens to your sales and your other games and to the overall sales for the Lottery when Mega Millions or a multi-state game is introduced?


Here’s the case history:  In New York, 47% gain in the combined product compared to sales over fiscal year ’02.  So New York was seeing a decline in its Lotto sales and that decline certainly continued when Mega Millions was introduced, but the increase in Mega Millions way outpaced the particular decline.  


And Texas, another very key example—40% increase in combined product sales during the 14 months with Mega Millions.


Pennsylvania, which is in the Powerball game, another fairly good comparison—over 40% increase in sales since Powerball was introduced in Pennsylvania.


Keep in mind, this is very important, I think, for you to understand, you keep the same revenue you would have kept if you had the game in this state alone and no other states were involved.  You keep that revenue.  It pays out in the neighborhood of 50 to 52% for the players, and that’s the portion that goes to the players and the rest comes back to the state and pays your fees and then pays your revenue back to the education system.

Here’s a slide of the New York Lottery.  Looking at Lotto and Mega Millions and what’s happened since 2002, you could see the decline in Lotto from ’97 to 2002 and then the increase in overall sales with the introduction of Mega Millions.


The Texas Lottery is a similar pattern, we have only one year, 14 months of sales to show you, but a fairly dramatic increase in overall sales of the two games.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you go back through those last states?  Real slowly. I think you skipped Texas.  So, Pennsylvania, Texas, and New York.

MR. ROOGOW:  Right.  They’re the most recent entrants.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How about Arizona?


MR. ROOGOW:  Well we were trying to use…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I didn’t see that slide.  There was a 41% decrease in Lotto.  How about Georgia, 18% decrease in Lotto?  How about Michigan, 24% decrease in Lotto?  How about New Jersey, 32%?  I mean, those are nice slides, but I didn’t see any of the other slides.  Where are those?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, the data that you’re quoting, is that Lotto sales.  Because what happens is…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m looking at revenue changes due to the introduction of multi-state lottery games.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  For Lotto or total sales?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For Lotto.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Okay, what happens is, when you introduce Mega Millions, you get a decline in Lotto.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I was just speaking to the same type of slide and the same statistic that was provided a moment ago.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Well with all due respect, the charts that you see up there are total sales that include Lotto, Scratcher, and Mega Millions together.  The figures you’re quoting may only be Lotto.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Arizona lost cash five, 23%.  Michigan lost cash five, 18%.  New Jersey lost 17%.  Cannibalization, I mean, why are we showing slides that are so positive?  Where is the other slide show?


MR. HASEGAWA:  Actually, if you look at the Texas slides, the purple bar, the bottom bar, does go down.  That’s the cannibalization factor.  The light blue bar is the additional sales from the new product, Mega Millions.  And the percentages that Buddy quoted are the Mega Millions and the in-state Lotto games combined.  But the Lotto game in Texas, yes, it is lower in 2004 than it was in the prior year.  There is that cannibalization.  But by introducing the other product, the two products combined yielded an increase in sales.  So I think the data that we’re showing in these charts is consistent with the Chair’s data in showing that the Lotto product in-state does go down with the introduction of the multi-state games.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  I might also add that in some states, Mr. Chairman, the Lotto sale itself is declining, and the Lottery directors will introduce Mega Millions in an effort to stop that decline.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Why don’t you send us those slides?


MR. HASEGAWA:  We can.  We just wanted to show the most recent ones.  Because some of those other states joined so long ago that it may not be as relevant.  We showed the most recent entrants.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well we probably want to know what we’re going to look like, not just that introduction, but four, five, six years from now as well.

Go ahead.


MR. ROOGOW:  Then I think we’re up to the Powerball slide.  Just again, a little bit further information on the history of what’s going on—Pennsylvania joined Powerball in June 2002, and we talked a little bit about what happened there.  They now have 29 jurisdictions with a total population in the game of 91 million.  


We can skip that slide since we talked about what happened in Pennsylvania, except that we admit that Lotto was cannibalized in Pennsylvania not just by Powerball, but also by the continued decline of Lotto sales that’s been a national trend.  But overall sales for the two games went up pretty dramatically.

SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman?


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.


SENATOR COX:  Let me just ask you—it seems fairly clear to me that the Lotto and Lotto participation goes down unless you introduce new games on a regular systematic basis and change the way, perhaps not payouts, but change the way business is done, just like a restaurant goes in and changes the menu, the format.  So if we were to do nothing, you would anticipate the sales would continue to go down or would they ultimately level off?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  We would anticipate the sales would decline over time.  We’re already seeing it.  One of the charts that we flew through was what we call “Jackpot Fatigue,” which was in response to your question, Senator, where when we first began a $25 million jackpot dramatically increased our sales.  Now we have to look for $100 million jackpots.  And Mega Millions gives us that opportunity to offer the $350-, $400 million jackpots.  And you’re right, if we don’t do something, the product itself will diminish in sales and drop off.  It will stabilize at some point, I suspect.  Well, we haven’t even done any estimates on that basis.


SENATOR COX:  Is there anyone in the lottery business that has a stagnant marketing plan?


MR. ROOGOW:  I would say there are some.  There are some states that are not….that really are finding it very difficult because of their small population basis, which is why they seek to broaden their base.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, not to be pejorative, but California might be in that category.  It’s been five years since we introduced a new game at the California Lottery.  Five years.

SENATOR COX:  Mr. Chairman, as I look at those numbers, it just seems to me that this is the classic marketing model that says that you’ve got to change your product from time to time in order to keep your market penetration up.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Go ahead.


MR. ROOGOW:  Only in California and Florida, I think there’s 41 lotteries.  Only California and Florida are not participants in a multi-state game of any significance.  They’re the largest states that aren’t participating in a multi-state game.  And they become one of the key products for many states lotteries in the country.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think, I mean, I don’t know, maybe just an opinion, when the voters passed this in ’84, that they would have passed it if they knew we were going to be in a multi-state lottery game?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Well, I’ll tell you, Mr. Chairman, to some extent I know your question is rhetorical, but I talked to the author of the initiative, the person who actually wrote the words, and he said he drafted it in a way that was most inclusive to give the Lottery the greatest flexibility to offer its product, and that would be Barry.  And I know he was invited but could not attend.  But I did discuss it with him.

MR. HASEGAWA:  So in terms of staffs that look at multi-state Lotto games, one of the things is that we need to provide customers with more choices of products, just like other companies do.  And as we talked about earlier, the Lotto product itself needs to be reenergized because jackpots of sizes that we have enjoyed in the previous years did not enjoy the same type of media exposure, as well as the same type of playership that we had in the past.  And consumers are used to a lot of options.  
There’s an explosion of choices in every product category with consumers.  You look at Pepsi and Diet-Pepsi.  It’s not just those two products anymore. There’s a plethora of products that Pepsi provides.  In terms of movies, in ’85, only 370 new feature films were released in that year, yet, in 2003, 459 were.  People are used to more and more choices for their dollar.
And if we provided choices to our customers….well, on the scratcher product, yeah, we have.  Because as Director Gutierrez talked about, in 1990 we only offered one Scratcher game at a time.  But more recently, the average retailer is carrying about 16 games at once, and we have different prize points.  But for our other games, we really haven’t provided any choices because the last new game was in 1998, and the last change to any game was in 2000, when we modified the Instant Lotto game to SuperLOTTO Plus.  And as such, we have to review our portfolio to keep it fresh and interesting to our players.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So at this point in time, this is a juncture to join other states for a different product?


MR. HASEGAWA:  This is what the analysis was yielding, that we needed to look at other products to introduce.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we could, maybe 10 years from now, we could be sitting here talking about joining an international lottery?


MR. HASEGAWA:  If that’s the direction that the lottery industry…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Really?  Okay.  I just wondered.


MR. HASEGAWA:  It’s nothing that’s there right now, but…


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s on the horizon.


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Well I certainly look forward to being here 10 years from now, Mr. Chairman, and I hope you too.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So how do you pay that out?  Is that in Euros or dollars?  But anyway.


MR. HASEGAWA:  How that jackpot threshold changes overtime, I think we talked about that a little bit earlier.  But in 2001, the jackpot reached 
$60 million—sales began to increase.  In 2002, we had our largest jackpot of $193 million.  But now, it’s difficult to create that excitement until you get to about the $80-, $90-, or $100 million level.  You probably don’t hear about it until it’s at that level with the press, and this is what that chart shows there.  Our Californians have become less responsive to jackpots in that $60-, $70-, $80 million range.

We looked at the multi-state games and we had criteria in terms of deciding which of the two entities.  There are two major entities.  There’s Powerball and Mega Millions out there.


We wanted to compare, what are the number of big jackpots that groups of states could yield for Californians.  We want to minimize any loss in sales from the SuperLOTTO Plus product.


As the Chair showed, that in-state games do go down, so what things should we look for to minimize any loss so that the total sales end up higher?  And also, what do Californians know about each of those respective games?


The cost to participate and who’s the best fit for California in terms of looking at the member states?  And we’ll have some discussion on that.


So those were the criteria that we looked at in evaluating between Mega Millions and the Powerball jurisdictions.


Powerball is played in 29 different jurisdictions.  It’s a population base of 91 million.  


Mega Millions is currently played in 11 states and it’s population base is 118 million.


In looking at the types of states that are involved, we saw that Mega Millions tends to be in the larger states, states that also have their own big in-state Lotto games.  


In terms of the top cities and so forth, most of them are in Mega Millions states.  So it’s a much more urban….states with more urban populations, and as said, they have strong in-state Lotto games, which is very important.


I’ll let Buddy talk a little bit about Mega Millions and some of its features.


MR. HASEGAWA:  We did talk a little bit about that before.  We have two drawings a week, on Tuesdays and Fridays.  And you can see in terms of media reach, what markets we cover—of the 28 top markets in the country, who we cover.  

And most importantly, we can look at our jackpots levels.  We’ve had 
10 jackpots at about $150 million or over.  Last Tuesday, we had a jackpot of $112 million, which was won in Texas.  One hundred million dollar jackpots are fairly common right now.  Assuming California joins, that will increase the number of jackpots that we’re getting at that level and higher, which should have a very positive impact on your sales, as well as overall Mega Millions sales.  

And you can see that the likelihood of big jackpots with Mega Millions and Powerball, and just focus on Powerball, we’re looking at 18 draws a year where it would be $100 million or more.  And then 4 ½ to 5 drawings a year where it would be $200 million or more.  Sales geometrically increase at those levels.  Every time you roll to the next jackpot you double your sales some times or even more so at very high levels.  The interest is very exciting.  So that pretty well covers, I think, that.

MR. HASEGAWA:  And the difference with Powerball, the likelihood of big jackpots was not as great when we analyzed their consortium of states.  The jackpots of that $100 million or more, or $200 million or more, level were smaller than in the Mega Millions comparisons.  And importantly again, they draw on Wednesdays and Saturdays, the same nights that we draw our in-state Lotto game.  
So as a result, the Mega Millions decision was based on one, Mega Millions offered Californians more frequent big jackpots.  There was greater probability of having a jackpot in excess of $200 million.  Our largest jackpot to date is $193 million.  And we know that the number of people that would participate in a jackpot of $200, $300 million would be enormous.  


We have a better chance of increasing sales across the board because they draw on different days.  We’ll now have a jackpot game on Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday, and Saturday, as compared to with Powerball it would just be on Wednesday and Saturday.  So we feel Mega Millions offers California Lottery….to reduce that risk that our in-state game will go down.  Yes, it will go down some, but this will minimize the losses on the in-state game, but the upside of the Mega Millions sales will greatly increase total sales.


And as I said, the members in Mega Millions are more similar in makeup to California.  They seem to be a larger state.  They’re a state that have their own in-state Lotto game that they also want to make sure continues to be viable and strong.  So we have much more common interests.


We also surveyed Californians, both during the research process, but also subsequent to the commission action and so forth.  So far, less than a third of Californians are familiar and aware of Mega Millions because we have not begun any marketing efforts.  But yet, 40% of all adults strongly agree that Mega Millions should be made available in California, and that’s based on a survey of 300 adults across the state.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  How was the question asked?


MR. HASEGAWA:  That’s in quotes “Should Mega Millions be made available in California?”  It was asked on a 10-point scale.  The 40% were those that agreed 8, 9, or 10, so the ones on the strong agreement side.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me ask a couple of questions.  What’s the process here?  So we have a Joint Powers Authority that is not yet signed and so what’s the process?  You’re going to seek an attorney general’s opinion on that first and then sign, or what are you doing?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Let me not speak to the legal side, let me just speak to the procedural policy setting side.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m trying to get to, when is it going to start in California, from your mind?  


MR. GUTIERREZ:  Okay.  All right.  Well let me just deal with that then.


What we’ve done is identified this as a special project and put together a team of some 18 people from different disciplines at the Lottery who are looking at what it would take to make this thing happen.  All the way from programming, to retailer training, to retailer point of sale to advertisement, to the first draw.  Where should the first draw be?  We certainly have been working with the Mega Millions Association and they would like to see one done in California, so it could very well be Los Angeles, San Francisco, somewhere in the Valley.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Given that, does this game call for the installation of any new or…


MR. GUTIERREZ:  It does not.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  No?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  No.  It’s on the existing system.  The only thing that needs to be modified is the back office system to reflect the software program for the new game.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how much is that going to cost?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  We have not been given a bill.  I’ve been talking to G-Tech about that.  I would guess it’s anywhere from zero to $300,000.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So that’s the total startup cost for this?


MR. GUTIERREZ:  For the programming.  That is correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What’s the total startup cost for this Mega Millions game?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  We are putting a budget together that will include marketing, advertisement, retailer commissions, all of that material.  We hope to have that finalized in the next two months.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And right now we’re at 12.5% administration, and a cap at 16%.  Does that take us over the 16% cap?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  It probably takes us below the 12.5%, because what we’re going to do is increase sales.  We’re going to bring in 16%, and we’re probably not going to need to spend all of that.  I have no additional incremental costs for staff.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re going to go higher in administrative costs, betting that our overall is going to increase?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  No.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What did you just say then?  I’m confused.  Are we going to go over 12.5% in the startup cost for this game?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’re not.  Okay.  Yes, Senator.

SENATOR SOTO:  I imagine you do have marketing meetings and promotional meetings and so forth?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes, ma’am.

SENATOR SOTO:  It just seems to me that there’s a better way to market this thing.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  I agree with you.

SENATOR SOTO:  And I don’t know, I’m not an expert.  As a common everyday ordinary citizen, housewife, I don’t see enough advertising for it.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  When we started the Lottery, Senator Soto, we were spending about $55 million a year on advertising and we had an extensive advertising program both with the Spanish language television stations, and with the English language television stations.  Today’s budget is probably less than $35 million, so there’s been a dramatic reduction in the amount of advertisement.

I might add, Senator, I don’t believe in this, but I might add that there are other states that are not allowed to advertise and do relatively well.  For example, Massachusetts is not allowed to advertise until just this year and they are the number one lottery on Scratchers in the country.  But it does take, you’re absolutely right, it takes a great deal of marketing and a lot of thinking about what it is that the player wants and how to design a product that they will buy.  You’re right about that.  We can do better.

SENATOR SOTO:  Well, do you have a think tank made up of people of all walks of life—housewives and immigrants.  Particularly immigrants, because right now I think most of the tickets that are sold are sold to immigrants coming in from Asia or Mexico.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  We do have an advertising agency, and part of that involves doing focus group.  It does involve doing surveys.  It does involve in trying to determine who is buying our product.  And I think in terms of who is buying our product, I think it’s fair to say that everyone in California at one time or another buys our product.  I’m not prepared today, to say to you with any specificity that one group is overrepresented over another group.  I think it’s just a general one.  But the issue has come forth from a number of different locations of trying to do games that respond to particular groups of people, either because of cultural history or things of that nature.  
The Irish Lottery, for example, I know when I was growing up, that’s what everyone talked about.  In Spain they have El Gordo, which everyone talks about.  In Mexico they have La Loterria.  And so there’s a variety in our Asian cultures there are different forms of entertainment that involve unique symbols and features and concepts.  So we look at those.  
Our decision so far has been to focus on general market advertising, to advertise in a more generic way rather than focus on any one ethnic or cultural group.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you, Senator Soto.  Just a couple of more.  If we’re in this joint powers or this agreement, what’s the length of it and are we locked in for any particular amount of time?  Everybody is looking for the attorney.  

MS. MEITH:  There’s no particular time frames, Mr. Chairman, but I believe it’s a 60-day notice, or perhaps a 6-month notice, to terminate your involvement.  But there is a notice period to say that we’re no longer going to be part of the game.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And there is any cost to opting out?

MS. MEITH:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We just call and say we’re not going to be part of this anymore?

MS. MEITH:  I suspect it’s written, but essentially that, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you send us a copy of your Joint Powers?

MS. MEITH:  I’ll be glad to do that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That would be nice.  You mentioned the Lottery survey to consumers.

MR. HASEGAWA:  Just California adults in general.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about retailers, they like it?

MR. HASEGAWA:  We have a retailer advisory board and many of our retailers, of course, are chain retailers that are in states that have a Mega Millions or a Powerball, and so they’re anxiously awaiting it because they know that it increases their sales.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is that going to be a pretty smooth transition?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Yes.  It’s just another new game that the terminals will all accommodate; a new button to press for Mega Millions.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And while we have the attorney here let me just ask some questions real quick.  Now we have pari-mutuel and banked games.  Obviously we’re not going to participate in any banked games, just pari-mutuels?

MS. MEITH:  That’s right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  We don’t need any sort of legislation to deal with that because it’s pari-mutuel, is that correct?

MS. MEITH:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the actual Mega Millions game being somewhat different, all of the normal prizes, administration, percentages all stay the same.  Nothing changes?

MS. MEITH:  That’s right.  And the money is all distributed in accordance with California law.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are we going to change any of our game symbols for participating in this particular deal?

MS. MEITH:  All of the California games will stay the same, so this is just an add-on.  By game symbols you mean just the look of the game?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, marketing.

MS. MEITH:  Mega Millions, I believe, has copyrights on a logo and we’ll incorporate those in California as sort of an in addition to the California logo, is I think how it’s being presented.

MR. ROOGOW:  It will have the California Lottery with the Mega Millions logo.  Instead of Lotto it will just say Mega Millions, or Pick 3 instead of Mega Millions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I gotcha.  And does every participating state actually put the same amount of money in terms of percentage of sales into the overall?

MR. ROOGOW:  I’m sorry.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  They all put the same percentage as California puts into this particular…

MS. MEITH:  Yes.  It’s a 50% into the prize fund game, and then allocations are the same.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of multiple winners, somebody wins on the same ticket, how does that work?  Somebody wins in Texas?

MR. ROOGOW:  Just like it works in your own home state.  If you have two winners at the jackpot level, it’s shared.  Half, it there’s 10 winners, it would be 1/10.  It doesn’t matter where they’re from.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And we also, in California, have disclosure suppliers, their criminal history, financial interest, partnership, joint ventures, tax returns, that’s all going to still remain the same as we participate in this game, even for other states?  Folks that are…

MS. MEITH:  We will operate with our suppliers in California exactly as we always have, yes.  And I believe other states have similar background of security and disclosure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Our suppliers are just going to be asked to do something a bit different for a different type of game?

MS. MEITH:  Exactly.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  In California the unclaimed prizes go to education.  What happens if there’s an unclaimed prize in Mega Millions?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  Thanks for asking the harder question.

MS. MEITH:  Unclaimed prizes of Mega Millions are treated the same way.  If there’s an unclaimed jackpot prize in another state, at the end of their claiming period, and every state is a little bit different on their claiming period, whatever California contributed to that jackpot is returned to California and ultimately goes to education.

MR. GUTERREZ:  Goes to education.  Thank you.

MR. ROOGOW:  We had a large jackpot in New York that went unclaimed.  I want to say it was around $100 million.  And after the claiming period ended, I think it’s 365 days, each state received its share of the contribution back.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Of what they put in?

MR. ROOGOW:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  And when you use the term “same,” it’s the percentage of sales?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sales, I’m sorry.  That’s exactly it.  Is there anything you would like to add that I did not ask?

MR. ROOGOW:  I think you asked a lot of questions that are very good.  I think we covered it.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  I think there is one, Mr. Chairman, if you don’t mind.  Jim, would you describe the potential sales of the potential benefit from this product?

MR. HASEGAWA:  Yeah.  Because we looked at the jackpots that we can emerge from this game, and staff estimates that total sales, not just within Lotto, but providing Mega Millions into our product portfolio would increase sales between $300 million and $500 million in a year.  
MR. GUTIERREZ:  And how much of that would be…

MR. HASEGAWA:  And it would be 34% of that to education.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  So $175 million?

MR. HASEGAWA:  A hundred to $170 million, yes—for education.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that’s the initial first year?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Twelve months.

MR. HASEGAWA:  The first fiscal year.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And have you factored in what it looks like going forward in terms of people maybe saying, “My odds really aren’t as good in this.  I really would rather play the in-state game.”  And yet, the in-state game gets cannibalized.  So how does one look at this and switch over back to, let’s say, where the odds aren’t one in 375 million?

MR. HASEGAWA:  With the Lotto game, the one difficulty in looking further out is really the function of the jackpot, which we can’t control.  We can’t control when it’s going to be at $300 million and so forth.  So really it does kind of depend on when we see those large jackpots.  
MR. ROOGOW:  Well, if I could add one thing.  The best evidence is the precedent from other states—New York, Texas, Ohio, which has seen continued growth in their Mega Millions sales.  So jackpots obviously have a big impact and we think California will help us have higher jackpots.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, Senator McClintock has left.  He made some telling points when he talked about logic and the use of logic in making lottery purchases.  I’m not convinced that logic is used when you purchase a ticket.  I know there’s a lot of people, my deceased father amongst them, that would buy a lottery ticket and gather all of his grandchildren around him and say, “We’re going to buy horses.  And we’re going to get a ranch.  When I win.”  And so it was a form of entertainment that he engaged in with his family.  So that’s one motivation for buying a lottery ticket.  But if we were to use logic, our Lotto game is one in 41 million for the top prize.  If you buy that same $1 ticket for the same $10 million jackpot on Mega Millions, the odds are going to be 150- to 170 million to one.  Why in the world would you do that?  You would go back and buy SuperLOTTO, just as you said.  Now, when that Mega Million jackpot gets to $100-, $125-, $130-, you go buy Mega Millions, and you probably buy 10 bucks worth, not $3, as Buddy suggests—10 bucks and maybe more.  But then when you don’t win it and you go into it 175, 150 million, whatever the number ends up being, it is a staggering one.  But you don’t play it on the odds, you play it for the potential of winning 
$121 million.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Good point. I think that’s all the questions I have for your panel.  The only thing I would ask is that maybe we have a further discussion on the capital necessary to increase our retailers having to buy the $5,000.  Because it seems to me, maybe I wouldn’t say it’s logic, luck, or, it seems to me it’s like anything else.  It’s like location and convenience.  I think people will buy where sometimes it’s more convenient and it’s located in a way where you might just be at a point of sale…
MR. GUTIERREZ:  You’re absolutely right that last point…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A little different than Indian gaming or a horserace or someone who’s going out to the track or going to the casino doing that for that purpose.  I mean, you might just be….and if you’re knowing what the jackpot is, and any sort of retail establishment where it’s more convenient to buy, you might just have it.  And if we’re actually going lower in that, then that might be an additional factor to look at.
MR. GUTIERREZ:  Let me support your point completely.  A consultant that we had used to say to me that in her mind the opportunity to purchase a Lottery product was a state of mind issue.  And for her, state of mind was that Penguins Yogurt.  So that’s where she was treating herself and would buy a ticket there because that’s where her mindset was.  But the volume is not enough at Penguin Yogurt to support a $5,000 investment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask one more question and I recall Senator Soto, off the top of my head, common sense question.  I made reference to it earlier, but there was an argument that, in essence, in many of our Indian gaming establishments that they created a video game that somewhat mirrored a pari-mutuel environment.  Do you foresee California going to any sort of, if you will….I mean, what’s the limit?  Is a slot inconceivable at a pool hall or a golf course where we’re seeing much of the Keno and things of those sorts taking place now?
MR. GUTIERREZ:  Well let me share my personal view…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Therefore we wouldn’t be asking Indians for some of their money; we would, in the Lottery would be doing itself, creating more dollars.  Wouldn’t you see that as a futuristic issue or…
MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, members, the future that I see is the future that I see through my children’s eyes.  And my children look at the future from a Gameboy perspective, from a cell phone perspective, from a hand terminal perspective, from an internet perspective.  I think the same sort of things that Senator Leslie saw when he ran his bill.  And I think the future is in making the game convenient and easy and accessible using new technology.
The paper based product with the latex on it that was so popular for the last 25 years, I think will be challenged by new technology.  Indian gaming, I think, will continue to be part of our society and it’s going to become a policy issue, quite frankly, whether we have any interest in linking their efforts with the efforts of the Lottery.  That’s a policy decision that will have to be made between yourselves, the governor, and perhaps the federal government.  It’s a very, very complicated area.  I would not be optimistic, but it’s certainly worth discussing as a policy issue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The reason I asked that question is, do you think there’s an opportunity for the Lottery, given where it’s going.  I mean I know you focused on increasing as much revenue to education, and I think that’s your charge, I assume.  Is there ever any thought of the Lottery overstepping, maybe providing some of the more new marketing types of games where maybe the voters in ’84 say, “Boy, I never voted for that.  I never voted for the international, I never voted for the slots at certain terminals to play Lottery?”  I mean, do you ever see yourselves as overstepping?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Mr. Chairman, I see myself in that capacity every single day.  And I rely on counsel to my right and I ask her, and she holds very high standards.  And particularly in the area of Indian casinos, she’s very conscious of the relationship, the sensitive relationship.  So every day we are marketing entity.  Our responsibility is to market our product, and we need to find a way to impose restraints on ourselves so that we operate within the proper environment.  

Hearings like this are very helpful.  Your approach to this hearing is very helpful in a sense that it reminds me that there are walls that we have to be mindful of.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  A very good presentation.  Thanks for putting up with my questions.

Okay, we have two more witnesses—Mike Weimer, Legislative Advocate, California Federation of Teachers; and Fred Jones, California Coalition Against Grand Expansion.  Those are the only two left on the agenda, and then we will take any public comment and we will adjourn.  Let’s start with, if we could, Mike.  Thanks for joining us.

MIKE WEIMER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members.  Mike Weimer from the California Federation of Teachers.  I just want to make it clear that I am speaking on behalf of the Federation today, although I will refer to some general concepts I think the education community would probably support.

First of all, CFT opposed the original Lottery proposal on three grounds:  a) we believe that the state should have the primary responsibility for funding education; b) that we should not have to depend on a relatively volatile source of funding for education; and finally, it is a regressive tax in effect.  That is, those that are least likely to afford it would probably be the primary source of the funding.  However, I’ve said that.  Now that it’s part of the education funding landscape, we the Federation, and in general, the education community, have been very protective of the funding.  And I’ll explain why in just a few minutes.  

The contribution right now, according to my analysis, is about $134 per pupil.  That’s just in K-12.  I did not break that out into community colleges.  It’s about $134 for K-12.  Well, we’ll just leave it at that.

I also did some checking as to how the school districts spend their money once they do get it.  And this information I have here is based on a 2001 report from the Lottery itself to the Legislature.  Approximately 78% of the money that school districts receive, go to salaries and benefits.  Now it started out at about 50%, but somewhere around the early ’90s when class size reduction came into effect, the amount contributed to, particularly certificated salaries, spiked, and it’s been right around 78% for about the last decade.  Fifteen percent goes to textbooks and supplies; and about 3% for capital outlay.  So you can understand with that great of percent of money going to certificated salaries, why we’re very protective of the funds that we do get.
Most recently, last year, there were two proposals on to change the rules of the Lottery.  What it did in effect was to increase the amount devoted to prizes, decrease the amount of administrative expenses, and concomitantly decrease the amount that education gets—the percentage.  We should note that the relative percentages that we’re talking about here have to add up to 100.  It’s a zero sum game.  It’s as simple as that.
Both of those proposals, one of them died on the Senate Floor, primarily because there was no outstanding support, no public support for the proposal from the education groups.  The other one died in Assembly Government Organization.  
I, on my on volition, did send a letter in support because the one bill, AB 2938 (Assemblymember Plescia) did provide a floor.  That is, the amount of contributions to education could not drop below a certain level.  And if you were able to increase the prizes, then the floor gradually increased somewhat. 
Speaking now to a….there is a current proposal, vehicle, at least….I know it’s not before the committee at the moment….but AB 1719 (Plescia) which does allow the Lottery Commission specifically to regulate the type of games that would be conducted by the Lottery.  And we have three questions that need to be answered.  

I’m sure that this is just a spot bill at the moment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It sounds like it if you’re giving the Lottery the ability to regulate the lottery.
MR. WEIMER:  That is correct.  It makes technical changes, is what it does.  But I’m sure it’s a spot bill.  I’m not sure what’s going to be in it.  But we do have three questions that I think need to be answered.

The first question is, will any of these new games, or will the new games, require additional administrative expenses?

Now, the Lottery says no.  It’s going to remain about 13%.  It may drop, but that possibility does exist that more administration is going to be required.
Second, will the new games….we’ve already talked about this….will these new games decrease the current contributions as the players tryout the new games?  
And in that case, we would probably insist that there be some kind of a floor that will have to be provided, and it will probably, obviously, have to come out of administration.

And then the final question is, how are the current contributions to be protected?  I mean, that goes along with the second one.
I would agree with Senator Cox, that there appears to be, in adding new games, it appears to be the only solution to increase revenue to the Lottery, you have to keep people interested.
My final comment would be, that we would like to see any concepts devoted to the Lottery fully developed in legislation so that it comes before the Legislature for full a debate and not just in regulation.  It’s a little more difficult to testify, although you can, but it’s a little more difficult.  We’d like to see a full public debate on the issue.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any questions, members?  I have one.  So let me understand what you’re against and for.  If there was legislation that said that with this new game, Mega Millions, if everything else was set, the floor was set, and if the legislation said that you were going to receive a lesser amount of the incremental difference, you would be for or against that?  Meaning, the amount above what you’re currently getting with the current funds.
MR. WEIMER:  I don’t know that that would be a problem.  Let me answer it this way.  Last year’s bill by Assemblymember Plescia, actually guaranteed a floor of about a little over a billion dollars.  And the amount of the contribution of the Lottery to education would never fall below that.  As the prizes increased, that floor gradually went up over about a five-year period, as I recall.  So that was something that I thought was adequate, but apparently my superiors didn’t think so.  So I just have to add that…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you wrote a letter of support…

MR. WEIMER:  I did on my own.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Your superiors.  And you’re still here.

MR. WEIMER:  Yes.  I’m still here.  My president just noted to me, why are you doing this?  In fact, we had never, the CFT had never written any kind of a letter in support or opposition to the Lottery on any legislation that’s come before.  I had my staff do some research.

Interesting to me, I thought we had something, but we didn’t.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Something to talk then, definitely.  Thank you.  Yes, Senator.
SENATOR COX:  I’m a little bit surprised by your comments that you think it would be necessary for a specific game to go before the Legislature.  It would seem to me that that would place an inordinate burden that would not be easily discharged and may or may not be good for education.

My judgment tells me, after having been in the Assembly, now here for about four months, that we tend to do things in a restrictive manner that doesn’t necessarily guarantee a favorable outcome.

MR. WEIMER:  Well, okay.  Let me answer it this way, Senator.  My comments were not specifically directed to this new game.  I have some questions that I think the educational community would have the same questions.  That is, how is this going to affect the revenue, the total revenue, and therefore how much goes to education?

SENATOR COX:  Let me just interrupt you.  You’re primary objective however is to at least get what you get now, and preferably more, based upon the current rules and regulations.  The bottom line—how do I get more money?

MR. WEIMER:  That’s exactly right.  And how do I maintain what I have? 

SENATOR COX:  How do you not lose, and how do you get more?

MR. WEIMER:  That’s correct.

SENATOR COX:  So, did you say that you wanted to see the Legislature debate the issues of whether or not there was increased….different types of games, or did I just mishear you?

MR. WEIMER:  No, I don’t know that I would say that.  What I would say is, I think rather than having another entity other than the Legislature simply set the regulations as to how the money is going to be used and what’s going to happen, I’d rather have a public debate and at least discuss the parameters that are going to go into that.

SENATOR COX:  So you weren’t talking about games, you were talking about the distribution?

MR. WEIMER:  That’s correct.

SENATOR COX:  But your primary objective is to keep what you have and try to get some more?

MR. WEIMER:  Yes, sir.

SENATOR COX:  All right.  Thank you, sir.

FRED JONES:  May I, Mr. Chairman.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. JONES:  Mr. Chairman, Senators, my name is Fred Jones.  I represent the California Coalition Against Gambling Expansion.  I also represent the California Council on Alcohol Problems, which was incorporated in California in 1939.  CAGE is new.  About two years ago we decided that we’re tired of saying “alcohol” and then coming and talking about gambling, so we decided to start another organization that has the same board members.

I’m here to testify for those two organizations, but I also represent some education instructor’s organizations.  Both the Home Economics Teachers Association and the California Business Education Association.  So Mike and I have a lot of dealings on those issues.  

And let me say from just one point, if I could, I’m not here speaking for education, but most of the education establishment were opposed to both the Perata bill and the Plescia bill last session.  CTA wrote a very long detailed legal opinion about concerns about changing the percentages.  And let me just say something about statistics, if I may.  And it’s a concern I have with Mike’s comments.
The Lottery Act said schools shall get no less than 34% for schools from every dollar wagered.  That’s how they sold, marketed, and passed that initiative in 1984.  And admittedly, my organization was opposed to it.  We lost.  And we’re not here to refight that.  But, that’s a percent.  And so when there are good days for the Lottery, the amount of dollars that go to schools, goes up.
The problem I saw from an education vantage point with the Plescia bill  last year was, they decided to change the percent guarantee for schools and just change it to a monetary floor, as Mike has argued.  Now that’s changing the scope and promise to schools that if the Lottery has good days, the percent, while it stays the same, their actual dollars will increase.  And so establishing a monetary floor I don’t think is good for schools if the Lottery is actually going to grow and have bigger pie.  And so that was another concern that I had with the Plescia bill from last year.
And will the administrative costs increase?  Now jumping to the multi-state lottery.  Of course they’re going to increase.  What the director said, was that their percentage costs won’t because the pie is going to get bigger.  So again, we’re jumping between dollars and pie pieces, and I think we need to keep clear, of course, costs are going to increase.

Now if I may, I’m just going to focus right onto the multi-state lottery, because that’s a big problem.  We have a problem with the Lottery in general.  The big “L” stands for loser, because that’s what it requires to raise revenues.  But I’m not going to discuss the merits of the Lottery Act.  What I am going to discuss is a multi-state issue.

You heard a lot about best practices.  The Lottery is not a business in the strictest sense of the word.  Certainly it has business interests that are involved and the business interests are the ones that create the machine that produces the tickets, and those are the ones that are driving the whole thing.  But the Lottery has policy implications that are far reaching.  Any gambling issue has far reaching implications.

In Texas, they’ve used their Lottery to justify instant terminal games.  They’re slot machines.  And it’s the state of Texas that endorse, support, sponsor and advertise those slot machines.  

And we have tribal casino attorneys that make a lot more than this attorney sitting before you, that are going to be arguing that because of the California State Lottery Act, they can have the same type of machines that Texas has without any regulatory oversight because they’re Class-2.  

So the implications of the Lottery go far beyond just business practices.  They impact your constituency at a very real level.  And as you can see, and Senator McClintock pointed out, you see the graph of revenues to Lottery.  It goes up initially with new games, and then it goes down.  New games are introduced and then it goes down.  

So today, what the Lottery Commission is doing….incidentally, there’s only three members of the Lottery Commission of the 5-member panel.  I don’t think any three have been confirmed by this body.  So you have three people.  It only takes a majority of those three to pass anything.  That’s two unelected, unconfirmed members of the Lottery Commission that are entering into what’s referred to as a Multi-State Lottery Association.  It sounds like an independent autonomous organization to me, which hearkens back to some of your concerns.  

But today, the best practices, let’s enter into a foreign state, multi-state lottery.  And that’s just American states.  But an opinion by the attorney general, an informal advice letter, they also said, “We think they have the authority to join foreign states, but we also think they have the authority to join international lotteries.”  Is this body prepared to allow a regulatory, unappointed, unelected body expand the California Lottery Act, and that’s the name of it, to China, to Egypt, without any legislative input?

The theme of my remarks is that I do believe these are policy issues, not regulatory issues.  And therefore, these type of issues, I don’t care about Derby and this game and that game, those are regulatory issues.  And best practices, fine.  But when it comes to exposing our citizens to multi-state and possibly even international lotteries, governed by associations that have contracts, those are policy issues that must, in my legal opinion, come before the Legislature before a regulatory body can do it unilaterally.  

And let me just harken back, I’m grateful for Steve, or whoever produced the actual ballot arguments in 1984.  In the text, there are several articles within the statutory framework of Proposition 36 that talks about retailers, Lottery retailers and Lottery suppliers.  There’s full articles just on Lottery suppliers.  And there’s a full article 5 on Lottery game retailers.  And the Commission, by the Lottery Act, is required to go through and discuss….have contracts with these people.  They have to post things in their retail businesses about odds of winning and so forth.  Who is going to enforce that in Texas?  Who is going to enforce our California…
SENATOR COX:  This is California.

MR. JONES:  Yes, Senator.

SENATOR COX:  This is California.  

UNIDENTIFIED:  (Inaudible)

SENATOR COX:  Yes, well he’s talking about….he thinks we ought to enforce the Texas statutes.  This is California.  The Lotteries are played in California.  We enforce our own rules.

MR. JONES:  I appreciate that, but the games that, and I don’t like calling them games.  The gambling procedures that our citizens are partaking in the multi-state lottery could be won by people in Texas; it could be won by people in New York.  And the Lottery Act Initiative that was passed by the voters in 1984 say that in the games that the California Lottery Commission enters and plays, they have to enforce very specific regulations of all retailers that produced this game.  
Now, maybe we can have some assurances that the Multi-State Lottery Association will have staff that enforce our requirements upon the Commission, but I haven’t received any of the assurances.  And in fact, today I heard that they don’t have staff.  So therefore, I don’t see how we can say, as general counsel for the Commission said, and I quote, “this is just another Lottery game.”  We have a very specific Lottery game that’s authorized by state law and our constitution.  And I don’t think we’ve had any assurances that this Multi-State Lottery Association will make sure that our regulations are enforced, so I think it’s certainly overreaching.

And let me say one more thing about the education establishment.  Two years ago, Jack O’Connell, your former colleague who is Superintendent of Public Instruction, “The Lottery has done more to hurt public education than almost anything.”  Just three weeks ago in the San Diego Union Tribune he was quoted, “The new game (referring to this multi-state lottery game) is not a panacea for education.  It’s almost insignificant.”

The total Lottery funds for education is about 1.96% of the total budget for the proposed new budget of $50 billion.  And this amount, even of their most rosiest scenarios is going to raise that maybe a half of percent.  So it’s pretty insignificant for the education establishment for our children.  But what does it come at?  What price does it come at?  

And I think the legal issues, they are rampant, rampant concerns of the ability of a regulatory, unelected body.  And let me just say about the process they followed.  The announcement for this multi-state contract was released Friday.  The vote was the following Tuesday.  I didn’t know anything about the hearing until I got a phone call from a reporter who, luckily, checks his Friday afternoon press releases, because that’s when political sexy items get released.  So the process by which this happened, was less than adequate for public scrutiny or input.  Another reason why the Legislature, yes, the Legislature is protracted, Senator.  I think the founding fathers purposely meant to make it constipated—for reasons like this.  So that the public will have an opportunity to weigh in and all of you have an opportunity to look at the policy implications of this radical expansion, and I think C-change, and I think, illegal expansion of the current California State Lottery Act.
I thank you for your time.  I’m open for questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any questions?  Okay, anyone else.  Thank you both.  Anyone else in the public that would like to make any comments?  Anything you heard that needs to be corrected?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes Senator!
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you come up please so we’ll get it on the record.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Two very minor issues.  It takes three votes of the commissioners for an item to prevail, not a majority of those present and voting.  So we need to have three votes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask a question while you’re here.  

MR. JONES:  Can I make a point on that, if I may?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, please.

MR. JONES:  Section 8880.21 (Quorum and voting of the Lottery Commission).  “A quorum shall consist of the majority of the members of the Commission then in office.”  Right now we only have three.  So a quorum requires two.  “All decisions of the Commission shall be made by a majority vote of the commissioners present, providing a quorum is present.”

MR. GUTIERREZ:  We’ve been following the rule that it takes three, and that’s how all votes have been taken.

You had a question, Mr. Chairman?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well now that that’s been brought up.  Could we seek a Leg Counsel opinion on that, please, staff?

STAFF:  Yes, we could.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Because I want to know if the vote that was taken was valid.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  It was three zip.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know.  You guys say that.  He says something different.  I want to find out from our attorneys.

UNIDENTIFIED:  ________ the vote was three zip.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Oh the vote was three zip.  Okay.  So you’re questioning…

UNIDENTIFIED:  (Inaudible)

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, we’ll talk after.  Okay, let me ask another question.  Of the Commission members, there are five total, just so I understand how it works.  How does it work with political parties on that?

MS. MEITH:  No more than three of one party.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No more than three of one party.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  And representing education, representing law enforcement, and the CTA.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So where are we then now?  Take a snapshot—who are they; where do they fall under those particular rules; what vacancies are open; and what haven’t we approved?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  To the best of my knowledge, we have someone that…

MS. MEITH:  We have a CPA.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  We have a CPA.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me just know.  We have CPA.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes.  
UNIDENTIFIED:  It’s probably a Republican.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  There are some Democratic CPAs, believe it or not.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  She’s an employee of the California Teachers Association.  I would guess as to her registration…

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, a CPA.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  A member of an ad agency.  I would assume he is …. Not an ad agency, a talent agency.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m sorry.  Someone in law enforcement; someone be a certified accountant; and the rest are just general.

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So we have the law enforcement person?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  We do not, but we are very close.  The announcement could be made in a day or two, if not today.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So we’re lacking the law enforcement person and also one other person—general.  

MR. GUTIERREZ:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And party wise, the open spot is a Republican or a Democrat?

MR. GUTIERREZ:  I couldn’t even tell you what my three members are.  It’s a failure on my part, the registration that is.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I just kind of wondered as we contemplate that for appointments here on this side.  

All right.  Thank you very much.  I just wanted to clarify that.

Okay, anyone else from the public who would like to make a comment?  Seeing and hearing none.  Members, thank you for sitting through this.  We’ll adjourn the hearing.
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